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City of Lynchburg 

Procurement Division 

900 Church Street 

Lynchburg, VA 24504 

Phone: (434) 455-3970 

Fax: (434) 845-0711 

 

Addendum for Proposal 

Fleet Management Information Software 

2019-038 

 

 

Date: 03/08/2019 

 

From: Matt Marsteller, Contract Specialist 

 

RE: Addendum No. 2 

 

 

This Addendum becomes a part of the proposal documents and modifies the Request for Proposal as noted below.  

Acknowledge receipt of this Addendum in the space provided on the Proposal Title Page.  Failure to do so may 

subject bidder to disqualification. 

 

1. In reference to: Vendor Requirements for FMIS RFP Attachment A matrix, Asset Management 

section, Excel line item number 45 & 46: “Fuel site access, purchasing, and billing” “Car wash 

access.” Is the requirement solely to track cost associated with fuel and car washes or are there 

additional requirements? 

Answer: Access to the listed systems is provided via a FuelMaster Fuel ‘key.’  The City utilizes 

FuelMaster to capture data at the fuel pumps and at the car wash, and then Fleet Services uploads this 

information from FuelMaster into the FMIS.  The data from FuelMaster must be captured for use in 

billing and various analytics such as fuel economy, etc. 

2. In reference to: Section IV Scope of Services, Item A.4.c “Shall include not less than 5 “custom 

reports” as defined by the City.” Will requirements/specifications for these 5 custom reports be 

provided in advance of the vendor demonstrations? 

Answer: Two specific custom reports, as shown in Attachments B and C, must be provided at the 

demo.  The other three custom reports are still undefined, but will be required by the vendor to provide at 

some point during the contract period if awarded. 

3. In reference to: Section V., 1 – Project Understanding & Methodology, Item A. 1 –  “Elaborate on 

any compatibility problems with other vehicle equipment for which the offeror is aware.”  

Please provide example(s) of vehicle equipment compatibility problems. 

Answer: This is a chance for the vendor to be transparent with the City about their product.  With the City 

utilizing AVL software now and wanting to incorporate more functionality between the FMIS and AVL 

software, will there be compatibility issues? 
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4. In reference to: Vendor Requirements for FMIS RFP Attachment A, System Requirements section, 

Excel line item number 18: Full access to our information, for viewing/transfer at any time.  

Does the above question refer to database access to the data on the hosted environment? 

Answer: The requirement does not refer to database access on the hosted environment. 

 

5. Three points of clarification and specification for the original RFP document located on: 

 

 Page 6 E. 1. GPS/AVL (with MarshallGIS) 

 Page 7 G. 8. How does system interface to the Automated Vehicle Locator (AVL) system from 

Marshall GIS? 

 Attachment A Page 6 Line 1 GPS/AVL (with MarshallGIS) 

 

Answer: The City of Lynchburg uses the LiGO Telematics GPS Tracking system provided by 

MarshallGIS.  

 

6. Is there a minimum amount of training hours with regard to training all fleet and IT personnel on 

use and maintenance of the complete system (F. 6) like the 40+ hour requirement for product 

implementation training and preparation for implementation (F. 5)?  

Answer: The City desires 40+ hours of training; however, the goal is to ensure that everyone has ample 

training to be able to operate independently and efficiently. 

 

7. In F. 6 there is a reference to train “all Fleet and IT personnel on use and maintenance of complete 

system as well as troubleshooting.”  How many people will this training include? 

Answer: Fleet will have 4 Office personnel and 7 Technicians.  IT will require 2-3 people.  

 

8. Is the city interested in a Custom Off-the-Shelf (COTS) application; an application built from the 

ground-up that is customizable to all requirements; or would the city be open to a combination of 

both? 

Answer: The City is interested in the COTS or hosted solution.  

 

9. In reference to Section VI, Item C; does the city expect a working prototype with the proposal 

submission or at the time of the orals?  If not, can you please elaborate further on what is meant in 

this section? 

Answer: ***Note: Section VI. Proposal Evaluation and Award C. Testing/Demo has been modified as 

noted in Addendum 1. The City does not expect or require a working prototype with the proposal 

submission. The City will allow time for software demonstrations to take place during the 

interview/presentation phase of the process for those vendors selected to move forward.***  

 

10. Does the city have a preference to a certain type of Software Development Life Cycle Methodology 

or are you open to any that fits the needs of the project? (Ex. Agile Scrum, Waterfall or Lean 

Kaban) 

Answer: Please see the response to #8.  

 

11. Does the city have a target price range for the project’s budget?   

Answer: The City cannot offer a price range. 

 

12. Does the city have a target project timeline to go-live post-award?   

Answer: The City views a reasonable estimated timeline to be 9-12 months. See response to #8 for more 

information.  



3 | P a g e  

 

 

13. In reference to sustainment, how far out does the city want pricing for maintenance and licensing to 

be projected?  

Answer: The proposal should include itemized purchase price licensing, as well as, the first full year of 

software maintenance costs. Also include annual maintenance and customer service/support costs broken 

down by year for five (5) years.  

 

14. In reference to sustainment, how far out does the city want pricing for a service desk to be 

projected? 

Answer: See response to #13.  

 

15. How many system users does the city anticipate using the system?  

Answer: 11 Fleet personnel, 2 parts personnel, 3-4 FD personnel, 3 Refuse personnel, 20+ user 

department personnel/customers (for informational access only).  

 

16. Does the city have user groups and roles defined? 

Answer: 

a. Fleet and IT Administrators (Full access) 

b. Technician Work stations (applicable level access) 

c. Department or Customer access (access for viewing their vehicle status, scheduling repairs, etc.) 

d. Supervisory and Admin (applicable level access) 

 

17. Can the city provide current network and system architecture?   

Answer: The city has a complex network and system architecture that cannot be answered in the time 

frame allowed for this document.  As a general high level overview: The City employs a 10g network. A 

2 Gb circuit from Lumos is partitioned for City and Schools Internet usage as well as a 500Mb circuit that 

the City uses from Comcast. The City of Lynchburg maintains 10 hosts holding 76 virtual servers for the 

entire production environment using VMWare. Enterprise applications include NWS-erp Financial, 

Human Resources and Utility Management system, Laserfiche Document Management, ArcGIS, Lucity 

Work and Asset Management, plus many more. The city uses Windows Active Directory, SQL Server 

databases and Office 365.  

18. What are the current legacy systems that the new system will have to integrate with?   

Answer: FuelMaster, Marshall GIS/LiGo, Tyler Technologies NWS-erp  

 (new integration), Parts contractor (new integration). 

 

19. What is the size and location of the data that will need to be migrated to the new FMIS system?   

Answer: The SQL Server 20008-R2 database is approximately 7GB of data.  

 

20. The RFP requests total project staff hours listed by individual; is the city expecting a firm fixed 

price bid or a time and materials bid?   

Answer: The City is expecting a fixed price bid, not a time and materials bid.  

 

21. Does the city prefer a systems integrator or a software/product company to lead this effort?    

Answer: The City does not have a preference.  

 

22. Would the city consider contracting with a systems integrator for the implementation, training, and 

service desk and then contracting for license with a software/product company?   
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Answer: The City may consider such an option if proposed.  

 

23. On Page 6.E.2 AIM System:  Please clarify the purpose, system, and functionality for integration 

with the AIM system.    

Answer:  

Regarding “AIM” and the FMIS:  

AIM stands for Automotive Information Module and it is the hardware installed on our vehicles that 

communicates wirelessly with the FuelMaster software when fuel is obtained at our fuel site. The AIM 

unit recognizes the vehicle as belonging to the City and enables the fuel pump to dispense fuel to the 

vehicle while capturing certain data, all while fueling. The types of data captured:  

• Vehicle ID  

• Odometer readings  

• Fuel readings (dates/times/gallons dispensed/fuel used/fuel economy/daily fuel limits)  

• PM’s due  

• Engine Run-time and Engine idle-time  

• PTO on-time  

• Car wash/fueling permissions  

• OBD Trouble codes/history  

• Vehicle speed  

• Many others 

 

24. On Page 7.G.6. Describe data exchange capabilities with Lucity:  Lucity was not identified in the 

RFP as a system for integration. Please clarify the purpose and functionality for integration with 

Lucity. 

Answer: The City desires to have the capability to export new equipment data from Fleet to be imported 

into Lucity to be used on a work order.  

 

25. On Page 7G.7 Describe data exchange capabilities with New World (Logos) Financial System:  New 

World (Logos) Financial System was not identified in the RFP as a system for integration. Please 

clarify the purpose and functionality for integration with New World (Logos) Financial System.   

Answer: New World System (NWS) is our finance software system. Currently, our FMIS and NWS do 

not communicate with each other. However, one reason the City issued this RFP is to improve processes 

and workflow. Following are some examples of ways the City would like the FMIS to interact with the 

NWS:  

 

 Upload Billing data directly into NWS - create file in a specific format that details debits and 

credits for departmental charges and fleet revenues. This file must have a G/L code that matches 

the NWS G/L code 

 Utilize the technician’s logins and logouts into the FMIS to create Payroll in NWS – create a 

payroll hours file in a specific format to upload into NWS payroll system. Employee numbers and 

hours codes must match NWS codes 

 Upload data from the FMIS into the Asset Service module of NWS (VIN, purchase price, year, 

make, model, etc.) – create a file in a specific format to upload into the NWS asset module  

 

26. How many named users does the City need for the new system?  Could you please break down the 

user count by the employee title and their role?  Would any of these employees utilize a mobile or 

tablet device in the field? 

Answer: Partly answered above in response to question #15. Some form of “tablets” will be used by 

technicians so there is a possibility of requiring use in the field. 
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27. What data attributes are you looking to import via Marshal GIS or any GPS vendor?   

Answer: Fleet currently does not import any data from the GPS. Future endeavors may include data for 

scheduling, tracking, erratic driving behaviors, fault codes, etc. 

 

28. What do you consider to be ‘industry standard’ KPI’s for reporting?   

Answer: Please refer back to Page 5 of the RFP. 

 

29. Is being able to order parts from NAPA on the fly via the solutions user interface a requirement?   

Answer: No, but parts inventory management and ordering is an important part of what the City is 

looking for. It does not have to be NAPA, but the system must have the ability to integrate with a part 

solution. 

 

30. On page 7 under Vendor Requirements, g. it asks to provide a timeline for turnover; system to 

system.  Is the city currently using a fleet maintenance program?  If so, what system is the city 

using? 

Answer: The City is currently using FASTER WIN, which will be updated to version 6.9 in the coming 

weeks. 

 

31. Is it acceptable to the city to conduct meetings during the project online?   

Answer: In-person meetings are crucial to the overall success of the project.  There may be the potential 

for working out smaller details at some point via online or phone conferencing. 

 

 

 

 

READ TERMS AND CONDITIONS AND SIGN 

In compliance with the above PROPOSAL, and subject to all the conditions hereof, the undersigned offers and agrees to 

comply with any or all of the terms and conditions contained herein, or as mutually agreed upon by subsequent 

negotiations.  This form shall become part of the final file. 

 

Company Name:     Address: _________________________________Date:   

Authorized Signature:       Title:      

Print Name:     Telephone No.:   E-mail:______________________ 
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